# Name and Location

The name of the corporation is SPRINGMOOD LANDING HOMECHNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. hereinafter called the "Association." The principal office of the Association shall be located at 2290 South Bay Street, in the City of Eustis, County of Lake, State of Florida.

### ARTICLE II Definitions

- Section 1: "Association" shall mean and refer to SPRINGHOOD LANDING HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., its successors and assigns.
- Section 2: "Properties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property described in the Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of SPRIMOMOD LANDING HOMEOWRESS' ASSOCIATION, INC., and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.
- Section 3: "Common Area" shall mean all real property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners.
  - Section 4: "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Common Area, together with all improvements thereon
- Section 5: "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record Owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of the fee simple title to any lot which is a part of the Properties, including contract sellers, but excluding any other party holding the fee simple title thereto merely as security for the perforance of an oblimation.
- Section 6: "Developer" shall mean and refer to KEITH J. SHAMROCK, and such of his successors and assigns as shall require more than one undeveloped Lot from KEITH J. SHAMROCK for the purpose of development.
- Section 7: "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of SPRINGWOOD LANDING HOMEONNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., and applicable to the properties recorded in the Fublic Records of Lake County, Florida, and
- properties recorded in the Fublic Records of Lake County, Florida, and all amendments thereto or hereafter recorded in said records.

  Section 9: "Nember" shall mean and refer to avery Owner, Fuers County.

Section 8: "Rember" shall mean and refer to every Owner. Every Owner.
Small be entitled and required to be a member of the Association. If
shall be noted is held by more than one person, each of such persons,
shall be made in the state of the state of

Association, and a membership in the Association may not be transferred except in connection with the transfer of title to a Lot, except that contract seller may assign his membership and voting rights to his vendee in possession

### ARTICLE III Membership and Voting Rights

The Association shall have two classes of voting membership:

and 1.8 Class 6. Class A members shall be all Omers and shall be and the control of the control

b) Class B. The Class B member(s) shall be the Developer and he shall be entitled to three votes for each Lot owned. The Class B membership shall cease and be converted to Class A membership on the happening of either of the following events, whichever occurs earlier:

1) When the total votes outstanding in the Class A membership equal the total votes outstanding in the Class B membership. or

2) On Jan. 1, 1986.

### ARTICLE IV Meeting of Members

Section 1: Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held within one year from the date of incorporation of such Association, on such date, and such time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section 2: Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the Fresient or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the members who are neither vote one-fourth (1/4) of all votes of the Class A membership vote

Section 1: Notice of Reetings. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary. All notices shall specify the place, day and hour of the neeting, and, in the case of special meetings, the purpose thereof. Notice of any meeting may be waived in writing at any time before, at or after such meeting.

(a) Notice of any meeting called for the purpose of taking

any action authorised under feetions 2 or 4 of prices VV of the Deciaration textraordinary increase of the annual near me the Imperitation of special assessments) shall be given to all members on the such meeting by registered or set than size (50) days in advance of seventa, postage propaid, and addressed to each member's address member to the Association or a supplied by such member to the Association or or supplied by such

(b) Unless otherwise expressly required by the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation of this Association, notice of all other meetings shall be given at least fifteen (15) days in advance to each member; and, unless a member has requested the secretary in writing that notice be given such member by mail and furnished the secretary with the address to which such notice is to be mailed, any notice required by these Bylaws, the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation of this Association may, in the discretion of the person giving same, be given by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or delivering the same to the member personally. Delivery of notice pursuant to this subparagraph to any co-owner of a Lot shall be effective upon all such co-owners of such Lot, unless a co-owner has requested the secretary in writing that notice be given such co-owner and furnished the secretary with the address to which such notice may be delivered by mail,

Section 5: Occurs. The presence, in prices or by from; at he macking of macking entitled to case (one-tent (1/2)) of the word in the Articles of sports for any action except as otherwise provide in the Articles of sports for any action except as otherwise provide machine to the present or sports and pages. If, and the provided in the Articles of sports and the present or sports and adjourn the section from the to the threat shall not power to adjourn the section from the contract of the section, until a sports as alrowed pages of the present or better the meeting, until a sports as alrowed pages.

Section 5: Proxies. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his Lot.

Section 6: Determination of Resbrash; For the purposes of determining the pursons entitled to motice under any reclaim of the Delivers of the purpose of the

## Board of Directors, Selection, Term of Office

section 2.1 Number. The affairs of this Association shall be samesed by a five that there is discretely show need not be semanter of the five that there is discretely show need not be semanter of a five state of the state of t

Section 2.1, Name of office, The term of office of the class A section 2.1, Name of office, The term of office of the class a discovered having now seen the term of office of the class a discovered having now to the class of interests a section of office of the class of discovered half of the class of interests and the class of interests and the class of the class of

Section 3: Removal. Any directors may be removed from the neard, with or without cause, by a majority of the swebers of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the mosed, successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the mosed, and the selected of the specific selection of

Section 4: Compensation. No director shall receive compensation for any service hampy render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbon and for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

# Nomination and Election of Directors

Section 1: Memination. Memination for election to the Asset of Directors shall be made by a Memination committee. Memination may also Directors shall be made by a Memination committee the memination of the Association. The Memination of the Memin

be made from among members or non-members.

Section 2: Election. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. As such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy on many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provision of the Bockerston. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected.

### ARTICLE VII Meetings of Directors

Section 1: Regular Neetings. Regular neetings of the Roard of Directors shall be held monthly without notice, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board's method as a say be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board's method in the Association, nothing contained in the Mysac shall require the Roard of Directors to meet more often than once a year. Should said not not should be not a read to the same time on the same time secting shall be held at the same time of the same time of

Section 2: Special Reetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the president of the Association, or by any two directors, after not less than three (3) days' notice to each director. Such notice may be valved in writing at any time before, at or after the meeting.

Section 3: Quorum. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Band'

Section 4: Informal Action, May action of the Board of Directors which is required or permitted to be taken at a sweeting may be taken without a meeting if written consent to such action, signed by all the second of the second

# Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors

Section 1: Powers. The Board of Directors shell have the power to:

(a) Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area and facilities, and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;

(b) Suspend the voting rights of a member during any period

in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such right may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of published rules and regulations;

(c) Exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles or Incorporation or the Declaration;

(d) Declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors: and

(e) Employ a manager, an independent contractor or such other employees as they deem necessary and to prescribe their duties.

Section 2: Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

(a) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the nembers at the annual neeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such a statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the Class A members who are entitled to vote;

 (b) Supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and see that their duties are properly performed;

(c) As more fully provided in the Declaration, to:

 Fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;

2) Send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and

Association which are not paid within thirty (90) days after the due that thereof by foreclosure, suit or such other lawful procedure as the Board deems in the best interest of the Association.

(d) Issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon

demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. A properly executed certificate of the Association as to the status of assessments on a Lot shall bind the Association as of the date of its issuance;

(e) Procure and maintain adequate liability insurance on property owned by the Association; each unit owner shall carry his or her own liability and hazard insurance covering the unit and real property owned by each unit owner;

- (f) Cause all persons or entities (except banking institutions) employed, authorised, or contracted to collect, disburse and manage this association's funds, including officers and directors of the Association, to be bondable with standard fidelity and errors and omissions coverage for the benefit of the Association, and the premiums for such bonds may, in the discretion of the Board, be paid
  - (g) Cause the Common Area to be maintained;
- (h) With the assistance of the treasurer, the seard shall cours as memals audit of this Association's books to be made by the comparison of each fixed year and shall prepare as semant budget the comparison of each fixed year and shall prepare as semant budget the comparison of the presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, which reserves for the maintenance and replacement of Association property are considered to the contract of the contract
  - (i) Otherwise manage the affairs of the Association.

## ARTICLE IX Officers and Their Duties

Section 1: Enumeration of Officers. The officers of this Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create. The President and Vice President shall be members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Section of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the numbers.

Section 1. Tarm The officers of the control of t

Section 3: Term. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year and until his successor shall be elected and qualify, unless he dies, resigns, or is removed or otherwide disqualified to serve.

Section 4: Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of who shall hold offices for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 5: Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President of the Secretary, Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt some state of the Secretary Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of the secretary such as the secret

Section 6: Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces, unless he sooner dies, resigns, or is removed or otherwise disqualified to serve.

 $\frac{Section\ 7\colon\ \text{Multiple}\ offices}{than\ one\ office\ except:}.\ \text{No\ person\ shall\ simultaneously\ hold\ more}$ 

(a) The offices of Treasurer and Secretary may be combined until the first annual meeting of this Association.
 (b) Special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this

Article may be combined with any other office; and

(c) Any officer also may serve as a director.

Section 8: Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

(a) President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; sign all leases, and the written instruments and co-sign resolutions of the deeds and other written promissory notes; and exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board.

(b) Vice President. The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Board.

(c) Secretary. The Secretary shall second the votes and keep the secretary state of the Sec

deposit in (d) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall cause the resipt of and deberging properties bank accounts all nonies of the Association and Directors and Tourism of the Association and Directors are found as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors are considered as the Association of Directors and the Association of Directors are considered as the Association of Directors are considered as the Association of Directors and Directors are considered as the Association of Directors and Expenditures to be present an annual Dedget and a statement of Innoversamual seating, and deliver a copy of each of the Directors annual needing, and deliver a copy of each of the Properties of the Directors and Directors

The Board of Directors of the Association shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee, as provided in the Declaration and a Mominating Committee, as provided in these Sylaws. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.

### ARTICLE XI Books and Records

The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any members. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws the Property of the Property of

# ARTICLE XII

As more faily provided in the Declaration, each sember is chileyest to Pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are assessment is made. Any assessment without the assessment is made. Any assessment without the assessment of the declaration of the assessment is not paid vitable inter() (3) may be assessment of the assessment as not paid vitable inter() (3) may be assessment of the assessment as the assess

### ARTICLE XIII Corporate Seal

The Association shall have a seal in circular form having within its circumstances the words: SPRINGHOOD LANDING HOMEONNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., an impression of said seal appearing on the margin hereof.

# ARTICLE XIV

Section 1: These Bylavs may be altered or rescinded by majority vote of a quorum of members present and entitled to vote at any regular or special seeting of the membership duly called and convened.

Section 2: In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and, in

the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

# ARTICLE XV

Any reference herein to voting and approval by members shall be controlled by Acticle III. It is the intent of the Developer that as long as he owns Lots within the suddivision, that he shall have complete control of the Association until 75 percent (75%) conveyance of the Lots to the Owners or until voluntary termination of control.

### ARTICLE XVI Miscellaneous

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, being all of the directors of SPRINGWOOD LANDING HOMEONNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., have hereunto set our hands this 30th day of December, 1981.

KEITH J. SHAMROCK

PATRICIA B. SHAMROCK CONRAD C. COLLINS

CERTIFICATION

the undersigned, do hereby certify:
 THAT I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of SPRINGWOOD LANDING HOMEONNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida corporation, not for profit,

THAT the foregoing Bylaws constitute the original Bylaws of said Association, as duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors thereon, held on the 30th day of December. 1981

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of said Association, this 30th day of December. 1981.

Secretary

ay of December, 1981.

PATRICIA B. SHAMROCK